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Great Hopes 
Sudlersville vicinity 
Private 

c. 1785 (survey) 
1969-73 

The original part of Great Hopes is the two story, 
two bay brick house, built around 1785. Its original 
"hall-parlor plan" was extremely common from the 
beginning of Maryland architecture through the 19th 
century. The form of the house was also very common 
for mid-18th century through the 19th century in 
Delaware as well as Maryland. This example is one of 
the smaller houses to have such a plani measuring . 
18' x 26'. It is of interest because of the original 
paneling in the living room and the.unusual board 
partition on the second story. Th~· second story. plan, 
with four cubicles, is a feature frequently found in 
the late eighteenth and early 19th century when privacy 
became more important in the sleeping room., The recent 
wings contain fragments from Liden Houss, Caroline 
County (CAR-41). 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Great Hopes is located on the south side of 

Peters Corner Road, .2 mile southwest of Maryland 

Route 300 (Peters Corner), and about 4 miles east 

of Sudlersville. 

The early part of the house is the two story 

brick, hall-parlor plan section, built about 1785. 

The gambrel roof section and lean-to were built in 

1969 and 1973 respectively. 

Flemish bond is used only on the south facade 

of the old house. Both facades are identical 

otherwise, with a central entrance flanked by two 

small 6/6 windows on the first story, with two 6/6 

windows on the second story and two basement windows 

with horizontal grills. All of the exterior 

millwork is restoration work dating from the 1960's. 

The east gable is laid in 3-course common 

bond, as are all other sides, and is relieved by 

only one 6-pane casement north of the chimney. 

The west gable has the single window south of the 

chimney, and here the chimney protrudes about 18 .. 

from the face of the gable. 

The 17 x 20 frame gambrel roof section replaces 

a c. 1900 16 x 14 2-story wing, which in turn was 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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a replacement of the original 16 x 20 one story frame 

kitchen. (See 1798 Feder~l Direct Tax). 

Inside, the original plan consisted of a "hall and 

parlor", with north and south entr;::mce·s into the 11 hall". 

Th~ original partition separating these two rooms was a 

vertical board wall, but it had been removed prior to 

the restoration. 

The east end of the hall is fully paneled with 

raised paneling and contains a cupboard on the north, 

a 4 1 wide arched firepl8ce in the center ?nd a stair 

with closet beneath on the south. The enclosed stair has 

two steps into the room. An unusual crown molding is 

on the top of the paneling only. Wide chair rail and 

baseboard circled the room and the window and door 

were perfectly plain with an ovolo molding on the 

edge of the jamb. 

The "parlor" had no paneling, but only an archi.trave 

around the smaller fireplRce in addition to the trim. 

A curious lack of chair rail and baseboard in its north­

west corner suggests the original presence of a small 

free-standing corner cupboard. South of the fireplace 

is the door to the wing, the only original heavy frame 

in the house. 

On the second floor, the original plan consisted of 

four cubicles, the two on the side measuring 6 x 12 and 

the other two 10 x 12. The one at th~ head of the stairs 
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was only used for a hall, but the other thr~c appear to 

have been used as sleeping rooms. The partitions are 

all vertical beaded board, reminiscent of thP post and 

plankpartitions of thP English long houses of the 16th 

century. The doors are raised panel, hung on cast iron 

butt hinges. The northeast room contains a very small 

arched firenlace, fully plastered. There was originally 

chair rail along the exterior wRlls. When the addition 

was built in 1969, a doorway was broken through the 

west wall of the southwest room. 

The attic was originally unfinished, with wide floor 

boards, some of which had been previously usPd. The 

roof is composed of plain rafters, two feet on center, 

secured at the ridge with a pegged mortise-and-tenon 

joint and reinforced with one set of collar beams, 

half-lapped and pegged. A board partition with batten 

door was inRtalled in the 1 70 1 ~, which came from the 

"Chesterville Hotel", Kent County. 

The wings contain a kitchen, dining room with open 

stair on the first story and a hall bedroom and bath 

on the second. Several elements from the Liden House, 

Caroline County, were used to create an old atmosphere. 

Access to the basement is from the north side of 

the chimney on the.west gable, within the wing. The 
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basement had originally a dirt floor (now concrete) 

and there are arch supports beneath the tw6 fireplRces. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The original part of Great Hopes is the two 

story, two bay brick house, built around 1785. Its 

original "hall-parlor plan 11 was extremely common 

from the beginning of Maryland architecture through 

the 19th century. The form of the house was also 

very common for mid-18th century through the 19th 

century in Delaware as well as Maryland. This 

example is one of the smaller houses to have such 

a plan, measuring 18' x 26'. It is of interest 

because of the original paneling in the living room 

and the unusual board partition on the second story. 

The second story plan, with four cubicles, is a 

feature frequently found in late eighteenth and 

early 19th century when privacy became more important 

in the sleeping room. The recent wings contain 

fragments from Liden House, Caroline County. 

A certificate of resurvey recorded at the Hall 

of Records, Annapolis, bearing the date 1785 refers 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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8.1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

to the official survey of lands of William Peters which 

he called Great Hopes. (The property consisted of three 

earlier surveys called Ridgeway•s Chance, Small Hope and 

Maynor•s Addition, and some vacant land, equaling 

238 1/2 acres. William Peters had purchased the first 

two parcels from John Ridgeway in 1772 and the latter 

in 1781. A resurvey of this sort was frequently under­

taken soon after the construction of the dwelling. 

Although the house is not mentioned in the certificate, 

it is believed to have been constructed shortly before 

1785. From the Federal Direct Ta~ of 1798, which 

gives full description and measurements, including 

windows, we know that the hou~e was standing in that 

year~ Moreover, from the Will of William Peters probated 

in the same ye,ar·, there is mention of "the plantation 

whereon I now live". From the facts that he owned no 

other plantations, the Rid~eways lived in Cecil County, 

and from the stylistic detail, .. we can safely assume that 

William Peters built the house called Great Hopes. 

William Peters was the son of Willia~ and Agnes 

Peters of Chester Hundred and was probably born around 

1750. He married Sarah Ridgeway, daughter of John and 

Mary Ridgeway, in 1773, a year after having purchased 

the original acreage from his future in-laws. Other than 

being a farmer, little definite has been learned about 

) 
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the person of William Peters. There is a possibility he 

served in the Revolutionary Army as a man bearing the 

same name mentioned in the "Revolutionary Papers" at 

Annapolis as "not heretofore paid", in 1783. Upon his 

death in l 798 an invPntory was made of his 11 goods and 

chattels" which included amongst his household items 

"some old books 11 ~ 'l'his is curious since he and his wife 

were both unable to sign their names. Of the Six Hundred 

Thirty Six pound value placed on his goods and chattels, 

his household furniture comprised about one sixth value, 

slaves onA third value and the other half was mostly cattle, 

food stuffs Rnd machinery. Real ~state was not taxed at 

the time of death; however, in 1798 the F~deral Direct 

Tax was made which assessed his farm and dwelling at 

$827.50. Few buildings in Chester Hundred exceeded the 

value of Great Hopes in 1798. 

Great Hopes remained in possession of William and 

Sarah Peters' son, Peregrine, until 1837 when Peregrine 

sold it to Thomas Walker. In the deed, not only is 

his wife's name included, but also his children: Warner, 

Wesley, Noah and Henrietta. After this date there is 

no mention of Peregrine or his family inthe Queen Anne's 

County records. 

Walker sold the farm in 1841 to John R. Hamm, whose 

heirs sold it in 1866 to John Dailey. Some of the local 
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8.3 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

residents recall where the Hamm family tomb stones stood 

in the locust grove south of the house, the stone& having 

been removed by Mr. Higman in the 1930 1 s, who purchased 

the property from the Dailey Heirs~ 

In 1965 Michael Bourne purchased the house and 

2 1/2 acres from Michael and Elizabeth Hegesi; the house 

having stood vacant for about seven years. 



IJMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES 
QA-1 

CONTINUE ON SEJ;>AM.TE SHEET I~ NECESSARY 

IJDGEOGRAPHICAL DATA 
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY _______ _ 

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 
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Michael Bourne Historic Sites Surveyor 
ORGANIZATION 

Queen Anne's County Historical Society 
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Centreville 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
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QA-1 Great Hopes 
Sudlersville vicinity 
Michael Bourne, April 1973 
Northwest facade 





QA-1 Great Hopes 
Sudlersville vicinity 
Michael Bourne, April 1973 
Southeast facade 
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Great Hopes 
Sudlersville vicinity 
Michael Bourne, 1968 
Northwest facade during 

restoration 





QA-1 Great Hopes 
Sudlersville vicinity 
Michael Bourne, 1968 
Southeast facade during 

restoration 





Q!f--1 

, 
·~-





.. • 

\ 

• 
-- - - -- - - - ------ --





tfl"r,J 117y 
I j-(A/I/ 

-~==========~=========~ - -_ -------:_ 


